



123 Technology Drive  
Irvine, California 92618

949.727.9336 PHONE  
949.727.7399 FAX

www.TRCSolutions.com

<b>DOCKET</b> 08-AFC-4C
DATE <u>9-9-11</u>
RECD. <u>9-15-11</u>

## Transmittal

**To:** Joseph Douglas  
California Energy Commission

**Project No.:** 165646/TA01

**From:** Joseph Stenger, PG, REA

**Subject:** Petition for Amendment, Orange Grove Project  
(08-AFC-4C)

**Date:** September 9, 2011

**cc:** Mike Jones, J-Power  
Doug Murray, TRC  
Camqui Nguyen, APCD

---

Enclosed for California Energy Commission processing is a petition for an amendment to the Orange Grove Project (08-AFC-4C) conditions of certification. The purpose of the requested amendment is to make the conditions of certification consistent with air quality conditions proposed by San Diego County Air Pollution Control District for their Orange Grove Project Permit to Operate. Two hard copies have been provided for your convenience. This petition supersedes the petition submitted to the CEC by Orange Grove Energy on September 9, 2009.

Please call me at (805) 528-6868 or Mike Jones at (847) 271-5875 if you have any questions.

**STATE OF CALIFORNIA  
CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION**

---

Petition to Amend Decision  
Of Certification

---

Docket No.  
08-AFC-4C

**PETITION TO MODIFY  
THE ORANGE GROVE PROJECT**

September 8, 2011

In conformance with the requirements 1769(a) of the CEC's Siting Regulation (20 CCR 1769(a)), Orange Grove Energy, L.P., the project owner, is petitioning the California Energy Commission (CEC) to modify the Conditions of Certification for the Orange Grove Project. The purpose of the proposed modifications is to make the Conditions of Certification consistent with conditions proposed by the San Diego Air Pollution Control District (APCD) for the permit to operate. This Petition supersedes the Petition submitted to the CEC by Orange Grove Energy on September 9, 2009.

**DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED MODIFICATIONS**

The Applicant is petitioning to modify Conditions of Certification AQ-6, AQ-10, AQ-11, AQ-13, AQ-15 through AQ-25, AQ-27, AQ-28, AQ-29, AQ-31, AQ-32, AQ-33, AQ-37, AQ-39, AQ-40, AQ-41, AQ-45, AQ-47, AQ-49, AQ-50, AQ-51, AQ-53, AQ-56, AQ-57, and AQ-59 through AQ-62 that were included in the Final Commission Decision (FCD). These conditions were incorporated in the FCD nearly verbatim from Proposed Authority to Construct Conditions in APCD's Final Determination of Compliance (FDOC) issued for the Orange Grove Project (Project) on December 4, 2008. Since APCD is proposing to change the Authority to Construct conditions in conjunction with their planned issuance of the Project's permit to operate, this Petition requests that the same changes be made to the corresponding Conditions of Certification. Two new Conditions of Certification for air quality protection are also proposed by APCD staff and incorporated in this Petition.

The proposed revisions to the FCD Conditions of Certification are provided in Exhibit 1 with proposed revisions shown in strike out and underline format. The APCD proposes to implement parallel revisions in conjunction with issuance of the project's permit to operate, following CEC concurrence with the revisions.

### **NECESSITY FOR THE MODIFICATION**

Following publication of the FCD, the APCD staff has recommended revisions to the APCD conditions used as the basis of the FCD, and this petition is to make the Commission Conditions of Certification consistent with the APCD's proposed permit to operate conditions. Affects of the APCD staff proposed revisions include: (1) revisions affecting Conditions AQ-6, AQ-10, AQ-11, AQ-15 through AQ-25, AQ-27, AQ-31, AQ-32, AQ-37, AQ-39, AQ-40, AQ-45, AQ-49, AQ-51, AQ-53, AQ-56, AQ-57 and AQ-61 redefine units of measure and provide clarifications and refinements on air quality protection related operating limits, averaging periods, and monitoring, reporting and recordkeeping requirements; (2) revisions affecting Conditions AQ-20, AQ-22, AQ-23; AQ-28; AQ-29; AQ-33, AQ-41, AQ-47, AQ-59, AQ-60 and AQ-62 eliminate pre-construction and commissioning requirements since commissioning has been completed; (3) revisions affecting Condition AQ-31 include addition of a particulate matter limit since this condition needs to reflect the major stationary source triggering limits for all five criteria pollutants; (4) the power output cap of Condition AQ-13 is proposed for deletion since it was included in error (APCD advises that they included it in the FDOC because project developers often request such language in order to help ensure facilities of under 50 net MW stay out of the AFC process), is not needed to ensure air quality compliance, and unnecessarily limits power production; (5) reference to the CEMS protocol being approved by the District for CO is not needed to comply with APCD rules; and (6) the two new conditions proposed by APCD staff (Proposed Permit To Operate New conditions AQ-29 and AQ-31 in Exhibit 1) clarify or re-state requirements pertaining to air quality control equipment use during operations. Additional details are provided in Exhibit 2. Modification of the Commission's Conditions of Certification as petitioned will facilitate compliance with both APCD and Commission air quality requirements and other applicable air quality LORS.

### **INFORMATION NOT KNOWN AT THE TIME OF THE CERTIFICATION**

The revisions proposed by APCD were not anticipated at the time of the Orange Grove Project certification proceedings.

### **MODIFICATION SHOULD BE PERMITTED**

This modification should be permitted to: (1) provide consistency between the CEC license and APCD's proposed permit to operate; (2) facilitate compliance with air quality LORS and monitoring and reporting thereof, and; (3) remove the existing power output cap that is a burden to the plant and ratepayers and provides no environmental benefit. The proposed revisions will not result in any change in environmental impacts of the Project compared to those already analyzed by the CEC. The proposed revisions do not change or undermine any findings or conclusions of the Project's final Decision.

### **ANALYSIS OF THE IMPACTS THE MODIFICATION MAY HAVE ON THE ENVIRONMENT**

The proposed modification is administrative in nature and will not result in any physical change to the project or the impacts evaluated for the FCD. Therefore, there will be no adverse environmental impact.

**ANALYSIS OF THE IMPACT OF THE MODIFICATION ON THE FACILITY'S ABILITY TO COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE LAWS, ORDINANCES, REGULATIONS, AND STANDARDS (LORS)**

The proposed modification will facilitate the Project's compliance with air quality LORS and monitoring and reporting thereof. The proposed modification will not adversely affect the Project's ability to comply with applicable LORS.

**DISCUSSION OF THE POTENTIAL EFFECT ON NEARBY PROPERTY OWNERS, THE PUBLIC AND PARTIES IN THE APPLICATION PROCEEDINGS.**

The proposed modification is administrative in nature and will not result in any physical change to the Project or the impacts evaluated for the FCD. Therefore, there will be no adverse effect on nearby property owners, the public, or parties in the application proceeding.

**STAFF APPROVED PROJECT MODIFICATION**

Orange Grove Energy requests staff approval of this modification because;

1. The implementation of the proposed modification will have no significant adverse impact on the environment.
2. The modification is administrative in nature and will not result in any physical change to the project or the impacts evaluated for the FCD.
3. The modification will provide consistency between the CEC license and APCD's proposed permit to operate **thereby** facilitating compliance with air quality LORS and monitoring and **reporting** thereof.
4. The project will comply with applicable LORS.

Signed:



R. Michael Jones  
Project Manager  
Orange Grove Energy, L.P.

Exhibits

Exhibit 1: Proposed Modifications to Air Quality Conditions of Certification AQ-1 Through AQ-62, Orange Grove Energy, L.P.

Exhibit 2: Necessity for the Modification

**EXHIBIT 1**  
**Proposed Modifications to Air Quality Conditions of Certification AQ-1**  
**through AQ-62, Orange Grove Energy, L.P.**

**EXHIBIT 1**  
**PROPOSED MODIFICATIONS TO**  
**AIR QUALITY CONDITIONS OF CERTIFICATION AQ-1 THROUGH AQ-62**  
**ORANGE GROVE ENERGY, L.P.**

**Formatted:** Font: Bold

**Formatted:** Default, Line spacing: single

**Formatted:** Font: Not Bold

**Formatted:** Default, Left, Line spacing: single

**GENERAL CONDITIONS**

**AQ-1** This equipment shall be properly maintained and kept in good operating condition at all times.

**Verification:** The project owner shall make the site available for inspection of records by representatives of the District, ARB, and the Energy Commission.

**AQ-2** The project owner shall operate the project in accordance with all data and specifications submitted with the application.

**Verification:** The project owner shall make the site available for inspection of records by representatives of the District, ARB, and the Energy Commission.

**AQ-3** The project owner shall provide access, facilities, utilities, and any necessary safety equipment for source testing and inspection upon request of the Air Pollution Control District.

**Verification:** The project owner shall provide facilities, utilities, and safety equipment for source testing and inspections upon request of the District, ARB, and the Energy Commission.

**AQ-4** The project owner shall obtain any necessary District permits for all ancillary combustion equipment including emergency engines, prior to on-site delivery of the equipment.

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit any proposed air permit modification to the CPM within five working days of its submittal either by 1) the project owner to an agency, or 2) receipt of proposed modifications from an agency. The project owner shall submit all modified air permits to the CPM within 15 days of receipt.

**AQ-5** The exhaust stacks for the combustion turbines shall be at least 80 feet in height above site base elevation.

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM for review the exhaust stack specification at least 60 days before the installation of the stack.

**AQ-6** The units shall be fired on Public Utility Commission (PUC) quality natural gas only. The project owner shall maintain, on site, quarterly records of sulfur content (grains of sulfur compounds per 100 dscf of natural gas) and the higher and lower heating values (Btu/scf) of the natural gas; and provide such records to District personnel upon request.

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit the quarterly fuel sulfur content values in the Quarterly Operation Reports (AQ-SC11) and make the site available for inspection of records by representatives of the District, ARB, and the Energy Commission.

**AQ-7** Pursuant to 40 CFR 72.30(b)(2)(ii) of the Federal Acid Rain Program, the project owner shall submit an application for a Title IV Operating Permit at least 24 months prior to commencement of operation.

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM copies of the acid rain permit application prior to initiating project construction.

**AQ-8** The project owner shall submit an application to the District for a Federal (Title V) Operating Permit, in accordance with District Regulation XIV within 12 months after initial startup of this equipment.

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM copies of the Title V operating permit application within five working days of its submittal by the project owner to the District.

**AQ-9** The project owner shall comply with all applicable provisions of 40 CFR 73, including requirements to offset, hold and retire SO<sub>2</sub> allowances.

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM and District the CTG annual operating data and SO<sub>2</sub> allowance information demonstrating compliance with all applicable provisions of 40 CFR 73 as part of the Quarterly Operation Reports (AQ-SC11).

**AQ-10** The total combined unit-operating hours for the combustion turbines of Permit No. ~~985708-APCD2011-PTO-000889~~ and ~~APCD2011-PTO-000890 985711~~ shall not exceed 6,400 hours per calendar year. ~~Unit operating hour is defined in 40CFR 72.2. (NSR).~~

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM and District the CTG annual operating data demonstrating compliance with this condition as part of the fourth quarter's Quarterly Operation Reports (AQ-SC11).

~~**AQ-11** The total combined operation of the combustion turbines under startup and shutdown conditions shall not exceed 400 hours per year.~~

~~**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM and District the CTG startup and shutdown operating data demonstrating compliance with this condition as part of the fourth quarter's Quarterly Operation Reports (AQ-SC11).~~

**AQ-12-11** The project owner shall comply with the applicable requirements in 40 CFR Parts 60, 72, 73, and 75.

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM and District the CTG annual operating data demonstrating compliance with all applicable provisions of 40 CFR Parts 60, 72, 73, and 75 as part of the Quarterly Operation Reports (**AQSC11**).

~~**AQ-13** Power output (net MW) from each turbine generator of Permit No. 985708 and 985711 to the grid shall not exceed 49.8 MW. (NSR).~~

~~**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM and District the CTG net power data demonstrating compliance with this condition as part of the Quarterly Operation Reports (**AQ-SC11**).~~

### Emission Limits

**AQ-14-12** For purposes of determining compliance based on source testing, the average of three subtests shall be used. For purposes of determining compliance with emission limits based on the CEMS, data collected in accordance with the CEMS protocol shall be used and averaging periods shall be as specified herein.

**Verification:** The project owner shall provide the annual source test data to demonstrate compliance with this condition as part of the Quarterly Operation Reports (**AQ-SC11**), due in the quarter after the each year's source test report is completed. The project owner shall submit to the CPM for review and the District for approval a CEMS operating protocol at least 60 days prior to the operation the CEMS.

**AQ-15-13** For each emission limit expressed as pounds per hour or parts per million based on a ~~one~~clock-hour averaging period, compliance shall be based on ~~each rolling continuous one-hour period using~~ continuous emission data collected at least once every 15 minutes.

**Verification:** CEMS data summaries shall be submitted to the CPM as part of the Quarterly Operation Reports (**AQ-SC11**).

**AQ-16-14** During startup conditions, the emissions from each turbine shall not exceed the following emission limits as determined by the continuous emission monitoring system (CEMs), ~~continuous monitor~~ and/or District-approved emission testing. Compliance with each limit shall be based on ~~a 1-hour averaging period~~ the startup period.

<u>Pollutant</u>	<u>Limit, lbs/hourevent</u>
Oxides of Nitrogen (NOx), calculated as NO2	<del>15.4</del> <u>13.25</u>
Carbon Monoxide (CO)	<del>15.4</del> <u>12.05</u>
Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC)	<del>2.6</del> <u>1.95</u>



**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM the CTG operating data demonstrating compliance with this condition as part of the Quarterly Operation Reports (AQ-SC11).

**AQ-17-15** During shutdown conditions, the emissions from each turbine shall not exceed the following emission limits as determined by the continuous emission monitoring system (CEMs), ~~continuous monitor~~ and/or District-approved emission testing. Compliance with each limit shall be based on ~~a 1-hour averaging period~~ the shutdown period.

<u>Pollutant</u>	<u>Limit, lbs/hour event</u>
Oxides of Nitrogen (NOx), calculated as NO2	<del>5.9</del> <u>2.68</u>
Carbon Monoxide (CO)	<del>9.4</del> <u>4.43</u>
Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC)	<del>1.7</del> <u>0.73</u>

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM the CTG operating data demonstrating compliance with this condition as part of the Quarterly Operation Report (AQ-SC11).

~~**AQ-18** During an hour when both a startup and a shutdown occur, the emissions from each turbine shall not exceed the following emission limits as determined by the continuous emission monitoring system (CEMs), continuous monitor and/or District-approved emission testing. Compliance with each limit shall be based on a 1-hour averaging period.~~

<u>Pollutant</u>	<u>Limit, lbs/hour</u>
<del>Oxides of Nitrogen (NOx), calculated as NO2</del>	<del>16.1</del>
<del>Carbon Monoxide (CO)</del>	<del>16.8</del>
<del>Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC)</del>	<del>2.8</del>

~~**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM the CTG operating data demonstrating compliance with this condition as part of the Quarterly Operation Report (AQ-SC11).~~

**AQ-19-16** The emissions concentration of oxides of Nitrogen (NOx) from the unit exhaust stack, calculated as nitrogen dioxide (NO2), shall not exceed 2.5 parts per million by volume on a dry basis (ppmvd) corrected to 15 percent oxygen and averaged over ~~one~~ a clock hour period. Compliance with ~~these~~ this limits shall be demonstrated continuously based on the CEMs data and ~~at the time of the initial~~ based on source testing calculated as the average of three subtests. This limit shall not apply during ~~the initial commissioning period or startup and shutdown periods~~ conditions as defined herein.

**Verification:** The project owner shall provide the source test data to demonstrate compliance with this condition as part of the Quarterly Operation

Reports (AQ-SC11), due in the quarter after the source test report is completed. The project owner shall provide CEMS emissions data to demonstrate compliance with this condition as part of the Quarterly Operation Reports (AQ-SC-11)

**AQ-20-17** The emissions concentration of carbon monoxide (CO) from the unit exhaust stack shall not exceed 6.0 parts per million volume on a dry basis (ppmvd) corrected to 15 percent oxygen and averaged over ~~one a~~ clock-hour period. Compliance with this limit shall be demonstrated ~~at the time of the initial source test and~~ continuously based on the CEMs data and based upon source testing calculated as the average of three subtests. This limit shall not apply during ~~the initial commissioning period or~~ startup and shutdown ~~periods~~conditions as defined herein.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0"

**Verification:** The project owner shall provide the source test data to demonstrate compliance with this condition as part of the Quarterly Operation Report (AQ-SC11), due in the quarter after the source test report is completed. The project owner shall provide emissions data to demonstrate compliance with this condition as part of the Quarterly Operation Reports (AQ-SC11).

**AQ-21-18** The volatile organic compounds (VOC) emission concentration from the unit exhaust stack, calculated as methane, measured in the exhaust stack, shall not exceed 2.0 parts per million by volume on a dry basis (ppmvd) corrected to 15 percent oxygen and averaged over each clock-hour period. Compliance with this limit shall be demonstrated ~~by~~continuously based on source testing, calculated as the average of three subtests. At the time of the initial compliance test, a District-approved CO/VOC surrogate relationship shall be established. The CO/VOC surrogate relationship shall be verified and/or modified, if necessary, based on annual source testing. This limit shall not apply during ~~the initial commissioning period or~~ startup and shutdown ~~periods~~conditions as defined herein.

**Verification:** The project owner shall provide the source test data to demonstrate compliance with this condition as part of the Quarterly Operation Reports (AQ-SC11), due in the quarter after the source test report is completed.

**AQ-22-19** The emissions from each turbine shall not exceed the following emission limits, except during ~~the initial commissioning period~~, startup and shutdown conditions, as determined by the continuous emission monitoring system (CEMs), ~~continuous monitor~~ and/or District-approved emission testing, calculated as the average of three subtests. Compliance with each limit shall be based on a clock~~1~~-hour averaging period.

Pollutant	Limit, lbs/hour
Oxides of Nitrogen (NOx), calculated as NO2	4.3
Carbon Monoxide (CO)	6.1
Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC)	1.3

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM the CTG operating and/or source test data demonstrating compliance with this condition as part of the Quarterly Operation Reports (AQ-SC11).

**AQ-23-20** The emissions from each turbine shall not exceed the following emission limits, ~~except during the initial commissioning period,~~ as determined by the continuous emission monitoring system (CEMs), ~~continuous monitor~~ and/or District-approved emission testing, calculated as the average of three subtests. Compliance with each limit shall be based on a ~~4-hour~~ calendar day averaging period.

<u>Pollutant</u>	<u>Limit, lbs/day</u>
Oxides of Nitrogen (NOx), calculated as NO2	141.2
Carbon Monoxide (CO)	182.2
Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC)	36.5

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM the CTG operating data demonstrating compliance with this condition as part of the Quarterly Operation Reports (AQ-SC11).

**AQ-24-21** The emissions from each turbine shall not exceed the following emission limits, as determined by the continuous emission monitoring system (CEMs), ~~continuous monitor~~ and/or District-approved emission testing, calculated as the average of three subtests. Compliance with each limit shall be based on a ~~4-hour rolling 12 calendar month~~ averaging period, updating once each calendar month. Records demonstrating compliance with these limits shall be available for inspection 30 days after the end of each calendar quarter.

<u>Pollutant</u>	<u>Limit, tons/year</u>
Oxides of Nitrogen (NOx), calculated as NO2	8.6
Carbon Monoxide (CO)	11.3
Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC)	2.3

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM the CTG operating data demonstrating compliance with this condition as part of the fourth quarter's Quarterly Operation Reports (AQ-SC11).

**AQ-25-22** Emissions of particulate matter 10 microns or less (PM10) from the unit exhaust stack shall not exceed 3.0 lbs per hour. Compliance with this limit shall be demonstrated based upon initial source testing calculated as the average of three subtests. The total PM and condensable PM measured using EPA Method 5 and 202 will be assumed to be PM10.

**Verification:** The project owner shall provide the source test data to demonstrate compliance with this condition as part of the Quarterly Operation Reports (AQ-SC11), due in the quarter after the source test report is completed.

**AQ-26-23** The discharge of particulate matter from the exhaust stack of each combustion turbine shall not exceed 0.10 grains per dry standard cubic foot. The District

may require periodic testing to verify compliance with this standard.

**Verification:** The project owner shall provide the source test data to demonstrate compliance with this condition as part of the Quarterly Operation Reports (AQ-SC11), due in the quarter after the source test report is completed.

Formatted: CM2, Line spacing: single, No page break before

**AQ-27-24** Ammonia emissions from each turbine shall not exceed 5 parts per million by volume on a dry basis (ppmvd) corrected to 15% oxygen, averaged over a clock-hour period. This limit shall not apply during the commissioning period or startup and shutdown periods/conditions. Compliance with this limit shall be demonstrated through source testing calculated as the average of three subtests and utilizing one of the following procedures:

1. Calculate daily ammonia emissions using the following equation:

$$NH_3 = ((a - (b \cdot c / 1,000,000)) \cdot (1,000,000 / b)) \cdot d$$

Where: a = ammonia injection rate (lbs/hour) / (17.0 lbs/lb-mole),

b = exhaust flow rate at 15% oxygen / (29 lbs/lb-mole)

c = change in measured NOx concentration (ppmvd @ 15% oxygen) across the catalyst,

d = ratio of measured ammonia slip to calculate ammonia slip as derived during compliance testing.

2. ~~Other calculation method using measured surrogate parameters to determine the daily ammonia emissions in ppmvd @15% oxygen, as approved by the District. Calculate ammonia emissions using the following equation:~~

$$NH_3 = (((a/b) \cdot 1,000,000) - 1.2c) \cdot d$$

Where: a = ammonia injection rate (lbs/hour) / (0.04478 lbs NH3/cft NH3),

b = exhaust flow rate at 15% oxygen (scft/hour)

c = change in measured NOx concentration (ppmvd @ 15% Oxygen) across the catalyst.

d = ratio of measured ammonia slip to calculated ammonia slip as derived during compliance testing.

Formatted: Default, Left, Line spacing: single

**Verification:** The project owner shall provide the estimated daily ammonia concentration and daily ammonia emissions based on the procedures given in this condition and provide the annual source test data to demonstrate compliance with this condition as part of the Quarterly Operation Reports (AQ-SC11), where the source test data is due in the quarter after the source test report is completed.

**AQ-28** ~~When operating without SCR or oxidation catalyst during the initial commissioning period, the emissions from the turbine shall not exceed 50 pounds per hour and the combined emissions from both turbines shall not exceed 65.4 pounds per hour of oxides of nitrogen (NOx), calculated as nitrogen dioxide and measured over each clock hour period. (Rule 20.3(d)(2)(i)).~~

**Verification:** ~~The project owner shall submit to the CPM the CTG operating and CEMS data demonstrating compliance with this condition as part of the Quarterly Operation~~

Formatted: Default, Left

~~Reports (AQ-SC11).~~

~~**AQ-29** When operating without SCR or oxidation catalyst during the initial commissioning period, the total emissions from the turbine shall not exceed 43.9 pounds per hour and the combined emissions from both turbines shall not exceed 59 pounds per hour of carbon monoxide (CO), measured over each clock-hour period. (Rule 23(d)(2)(i))~~

Formatted: CM1, Line spacing: single, No page break before

~~**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM the CTG operating and CEMS data demonstrating compliance with this condition as part of the Quarterly Operation Reports (AQ-SC11).~~

**AQ-30-25** Visible emissions from the lube oil vents and the exhaust stack of the unit shall not exceed 20 percent opacity for more than three (3) minutes in any period of 60 consecutive minutes. (Rule 50)

**Verification:** The project owner shall make the site available for inspection of records by representatives of the District, ARB, and the Energy Commission.

**AQ-31-26** Total aggregate emissions from all stationary emission units at this stationary source, except emissions or emission units excluded from the calculation of aggregate potential to emit as specified in Rule 20.1 (d) (1), shall not exceed the following limits in each rolling 12-calendar month period. The total aggregate emissions shall include emissions during all times that the equipment is operating, including but not limited to, emissions during periods of commissioning, startup, shutdown, and tuning.

1. Oxides of Nitrogen (NOx): 50 tons/year
2. Carbon Monoxide (CO): 100 tons/year
3. Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC): 50 tons/year
4. Oxides of Sulfur (SOx): 100 tons/year
5. Particulate Matter (PM10) 100 tons/year

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM and District the facility annual operating and emissions data demonstrating compliance with this condition as part of the fourth quarter's Quarterly Operation Reports (AQ-SC11).

**AQ-32-27** The emissions of any single federal Hazardous Air Pollutant (HAP) shall not equal or exceed 10 tons, and the aggregate emissions of all federal HAPs shall not equal or exceed 25 tons in any rolling 12-calendar month period. Compliance with these single and aggregate HAP limits shall be based on a methodology approved by the District for the purpose of calculating HAP emissions for this permit. If emissions exceed these limits, the project owner shall apply to amend this permit to reflect applicable federal Maximum Achievable Control Technology (MACT) standards and requirements in accordance with applicable provisions (including timing requirements) of 40 CFR Part 63.

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM and District the facility annual operating data demonstrating compliance with this condition as part of the fourth quarter's Quarterly Operation Reports (AQ-SC11).

#### **Ammonia – SCR**

~~AQ-33~~ At least 90 days prior to the start of construction, the project owner shall submit to the District the final selection, design parameters and details of the selective catalytic reduction (SCR) and oxidation catalyst emission control systems. Such information may be submitted to the District as trade secret and confidential pursuant to District Rules 175 and 176.

~~Verification:~~ The project owner shall submit to the CPM for review and District for approval final selection, design parameters and details of the SCR and oxidation catalyst emission control systems at least 90 days prior to the start of construction.

**AQ-34-28** Before operating an SCR system, continuous monitors shall be installed on each SCR system to monitor or calculate, and record the ammonia injection rate (lbs/hour) and the SCR catalyst temperature (°F). The monitors shall be installed, calibrated and maintained in accordance with a District approved protocol. This protocol, which shall include the calculation methodology, shall be submitted to the District for written approval at least 60 days prior to initial startup of the gas turbines with the SCR system. The monitors shall be in full operation at all times when the turbine is in operation.

**Verification:** The project owner shall provide a protocol as required in the condition for the installation, calibration, and testing for the SCR system continuous monitors at least 60 days prior to SCR system use. The project owner shall submit to the CPM and District the SCR system operating data demonstrating compliance with this condition as part of the Quarterly Operation Reports (AQ-SC11).

**AQ-29** Except during startup and shut down conditions, the water injection system, the SCR system and oxidation catalyst control system, including the ammonia injection system serving the turbine, shall be in full operation at all times when the turbine is in operation.

**Verification:** The project owner shall make the site available for inspection of records by representatives of the District, ARB, and the Energy Commission.

**AQ-35-30** Except during periods when the ammonia injection system is being tuned or one or more ammonia injection systems is in manual control (for compliance with applicable permits), the automatic ammonia injection system serving the SCR shall be in operation in accordance with manufacturer's specifications at all times when ammonia is being injected into the SCR. Manufacturer specifications shall be maintained on site and made available to District personnel upon request.

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Not Highlight

**Verification:** The project owner shall make the site available for inspection of records by representatives of the District, ARB, and the Energy Commission.

**AQ-31** In the event of breakdown in the ammonia injection control system, a trained operator shall operate the system manually and the breakdown shall be reported to the District Compliance Division pursuant to Rule 98(b)(1) and 98(e).

**Verification:** The project owner shall notify the District regarding any ammonia injection control system breakdown as required in this condition and shall document all such communications in each Quarterly Operation Report (AQ-SC11).

**AQ-36-32** The concentration of ammonia solution used in the ammonia injection system shall be less than 20 percent ammonia by weight. Records of ammonia solution concentration shall be maintained on site and made available to District personnel upon request.

**Verification:** The project owner shall maintain on site and provide on request of the CPM or District the ammonia delivery records that demonstrate compliance with this condition.

### Definitions

**AQ-37-33** For the purposes of this license startup conditions shall be defined as the ~~period of time that begins when fuel flows to the turbine begins until the time that the unit complies with the emission limits specified in Condition AQ-22 but in no case exceeding 30 minutes per occurrence and shall continue for no longer than 30 consecutive minutes.~~ Shutdown conditions shall be defined as the 15 minute period time preceding the moment at which fuel flow ceases ~~and during which the unit does not comply with the emission limits specified in Condition AQ-22 but in no cases exceeding 30 minutes per occurrence.~~ The Data Acquisition and Recording System (DAS), as required by 40 CFR75, shall record these events. This condition may be modified by the District based on field performance of the equipment.

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM the CTG start-up and shut-down event duration data demonstrating compliance with this condition as part of the Quarterly Operation Reports (AQ-SC11).

**AQ-38-34** A CEMS protocol is a document approved in writing by the APCD M&TS division that describes the Quality Assurance and Quality Control procedures for monitoring, calculating and recording stack emissions from the unit.

**Verification:** The project owner shall maintain a copy of the CEMS protocol on site and provide it for inspection on request of the CPM or District.

### Testing

**AQ-39-35** ~~At least 60 days prior to initial startup of the gas turbines, t~~he project owner shall submit a source test protocol to the District for approval. The source test protocol shall comply with the following requirements:

Formatted: Default, Left

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Default, Left

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Default, Left, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Default, Left, Line spacing: single, No page break before

Formatted: Default, Left, Line spacing: single

A. Measurements of NO<sub>x</sub>, CO, and O<sub>2</sub> emissions shall be conducted in accordance with U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) methods 7E, 10, and 3A, respectively, and District Source Test, method 100, or alternative methods approved by the District ~~and U.S. EPA~~;

Formatted: Default, Left

B. Measurement of VOC emissions shall be conducted in accordance with U.S. EPA Methods 25A and/or 18, or alternative methods approved by the District ~~and U.S. EPA~~;

Formatted: CM6, Line spacing: single, No page break before

C. Measurements of PM<sub>10</sub> emissions shall be conducted in accordance with U.S. EPA Methods 5 and 201A ~~or and-202~~, or alternative methods approved by the District ~~and U.S. EPA~~;

D. Measurements of ammonia emissions shall be conducted in accordance with Bay Area Air Quality Management District ST-1B or an alternative method approved by the District ~~and U.S. EPA~~;

E. Source testing shall be performed at the ~~most frequently used~~ normal load level, as specified in 40 CFR part 75 Appendix A Section 6.52.1.d, provided it is not less than 80% of the unit's rated load unless it is demonstrated to the satisfaction of the District that the unit cannot operate under these conditions. If the demonstration is accepted, then emissions source testing shall be performed at the highest achievable continuous level power level.

F. Measurements of opacity shall be conducted in accordance with U.S. EPA Method 9 or an alternative method approved by the District ~~and U.S. EPA~~.

G. Measurement of fuel flow shall be conducted in accordance with an approved test protocol.

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM for review and the District for approval the initial source test protocol in compliance with requirements of this condition at least 60 days prior to the initial source test.

**AQ 40-36** Each turbine shall be equipped with continuous monitors to measure or calculate, and record, the following operational characteristics of each unit:

1. Hours of operation (hours),
2. Natural gas flow rate (scfh),
3. Heat input rate (MMBtu /hr),
- ~~4. Exhaust gas flow rate (dscfm),~~
54. Exhaust gas temperature (°F), ~~and~~
65. Power output (gross MW).



76. Water (for NOx control) injection rate (~~lbs/hour~~) (gal/hour) if equipped with water injection.

7. SCR inlet temperature (F°)

8. Ammonia injection rate (gal/hour)

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM for review and the District for approval a parametric monitoring protocol in compliance with this condition at least 60 days prior to the initial startup.

**AQ-41-37** ~~At least 60 days prior to the initial startup of the gas turbines, t~~The project owner shall submit a turbine operation monitoring protocol, which shall include relevant calculation methodologies to the District for written approval. The monitors shall be installed, calibrated, and maintained in accordance with the protocol. The monitors should be in full operation at all times when the turbine is in operation. Calibration records for the continuous monitors shall be maintained on site and made available to the District upon request. The project owner shall make the site available for inspection of the turbine operation monitors and monitor maintenance records by representatives of the District, ARB, and the Energy Commission.

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM for review and the District for approval a turbine operation monitoring protocol in compliance with this condition at least 60 days prior to the initial startup.

**AQ-42-38** The exhaust stacks for each turbine shall be equipped with source test ports and platforms to allow for the measurement and collection of stack gas samples consistent with all approved test protocols. The ports and platforms shall be constructed in accordance with District Method 3A, Figure 2, and approved by the District.

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM for review and District for approval a stack test port and platform plan at least 60 days before the installation of the stack ports and platform.

**AQ-43-39** If source testing will be performed by an independent contractor and witnessed by the District, a source test protocol shall be submitted to the District for written approval at least 30 days prior to source testing.

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM for review and District for approval, if necessary based on the condition requirements, a source test protocol at least 30 days prior to the source test.

**AQ-44-40** Within 45 days after completion of the source test or RATA, a final test report shall be submitted to the District for review and approval.

**Verification:** The project owner will submit all RATA or source test reports to the CPM for review and the District for approval within 45 days of the completion of those tests.

**AQ-45-41** ~~This turbine shall be source tested once each permit year (annual source~~

Formatted: No page break before

~~test) to demonstrate compliance with the emission standards contained in this permit. For the purposes of this permit, a permit year is the 12-month period ending on the last day of the permit expiration month. It is the responsibility of the project owner to schedule the source test with the District. The source test shall be performed or witnessed by the District. Each annual source test shall be separated. These units shall be source tested to demonstrate compliance with the **Nox, CO, VOC, PM and ammonia emission standards** of this permit license using District approved methods, by at least 90 days. An annual CEMS RATA, where required, may be used to fulfill the annual source testing requirement for **NOx and CO**. The source test and the NOx and CO RATA tests shall be conducted in accordance with the RATA frequency requirements of 40 CFR 75, Appendix B, Sections 2.3.1 and 2.3.3. **Test Audit (RATA) tests shall be conducted in accordance with the applicable RATA frequency requirements of 40 CFR 75, appendix b, sections 2.3.1 and 2.3.3.**~~

**Verification:** The results and field data collected during source tests required by this condition shall be submitted to the CPM for review and the District for approval within 45 days of testing.

#### **Continuous Emission Monitoring System (CEMS)**

**AQ-46-42** The project owner shall comply with the continuous emission monitoring requirements of 40 CFR Part 75.

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM for review and the District for approval a CEMS monitoring protocol at least 60 days prior to the operation the CEMS.

**AQ-47-43** At least 60 days prior to the operation of the ~~permanent~~ CEMs, the project owner shall submit a CEMs operating protocol to the District for written approval. The project owner shall make the site available for inspection of the CEMs and CEMs maintenance records by representatives of the District, ARB, and the Energy Commission.

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM for review and the District for approval a CEMS operating protocol at least 60 days prior to the operation the ~~permanent~~ CEMS.

**AQ-48-44** A monitoring plan in conformance with 40 CFR 75.53 shall be submitted to U.S. EPA Region 9 and the District at least 45 days prior to the Relative Accuracy Test Audit test, as required in 40 CFR 75.62.

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM for review and the District for approval a monitoring plan in compliance with this condition at least 45 days prior to the RATA test.

**AQ-49-45** ~~No later than 90 unit operating days or 180 calendar days after each unit commences commercial operation (defined for this condition as the instance when power is sold to the grid), a~~ **A** Relative Accuracy Test Audit (RATA) and other required certification tests shall be performed and completed on the CEMs in accordance with 40

CFR Part 75 Appendix A Specifications and Test Procedures. At least 60 days prior to the test date, the project owner shall submit a test protocol to the District for written approval. Additionally, the District shall be notified a minimum of 45-21 days prior to the test so that observers may be present. Within 30 days of completion of this test, a written test report shall be submitted to the District for approval.

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM for review and the District for approval the RATA certification test protocol at least 60 days prior to the RATA test and shall submit to the CPM for review and the District for approval a copy of the written test report within 30 days after test completion. The project owner shall also notify the CPM and District of the RATA test date at least 45-21 days prior to conducting the RATA and other certification tests.

**AQ-50-46** The oxides of nitrogen (NOx) and oxygen (O2) CEMS shall be certified and maintained in accordance with applicable Federal Regulations including the requirements of Sections 75.10 and 75.12 of Title 40, Code of Federal Regulations Part 75 (40 CFR 75), the performance specifications of Appendix A of 40 CFR 75, the quality assurance procedures of Appendix B of 40 CFR 75 and the CEMS protocol approved by the District. The carbon monoxide (CO) CEMS shall be certified and maintained in accordance with 40 CFR 60, Appendices B and F, unless otherwise specified in this permit, ~~and the CEMS protocol approved by the District.~~

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM for review and the District for approval a CEMS operating protocol as required by **AQ-4743**. The project owner shall make the site available for inspection of records by representatives of the District, ARB, and the Energy Commission.

**AQ-51-47** Continuous emission monitoring system (CEMS) shall be installed and properly maintained and calibrated to measure, calculate and record the following, in accordance with the District approved CEMS protocol:

- A. Percent oxygen (O2) in the exhaust gas (%);
- B. Average concentration of oxides of nitrogen (NOx) for each ~~continuous rolling 1- clock~~ hour period, in parts per million (ppmv) corrected to 15% oxygen;
- C. Average concentration of carbon monoxide (CO) for each ~~continuous rolling 1- clock~~ - hour period, in parts per million (ppmv) corrected to 15% oxygen;
- d. Average concentration of volatile organic compound (VOC) for each clock-hour period, in parts per million (ppmv) corrected to 15% oxygen, based on the CO/VOC surrogate relationship.
- e. Clock hour mass emissions of oxides of nitrogen (NOx), in lbs/hour;
- f. Clock hour mass emissions of carbon monoxide (CO), in lbs/hour;
- g. Clock hour mass emissions of volatile organic compound (VOC) in lbs/hour, based on the CO/VOC surrogate relationship;
- h. Calendar day mass emissions of oxides of nitrogen (NOx) in lbs/day;
- i. Calendar day mass emissions of carbon monoxide (CO) in lbs/day;
- j. Calendar day mass emissions of volatile organic compounds (VOC) in lbs/day;
- ~~Dk.~~ Annual-Rolling 12-calendar month mass emissions of oxides of nitrogen (NOx), in tons;

Formatted: Default, Left, Line spacing: single

El. ~~Annual~~ Rolling 12-calendar month mass emissions of carbon monoxide (CO), in tons.

m. Rolling 12 calendar month mass emissions of volatile organic compound (VOC), in tons;

Fn. Natural gas flow rate to turbine in hscf/hr.

o. Average concentration of ammonia slip emission of each clock-hour period, in parts per million by volume (PPMV) corrected to 15% oxygen, calculated in accordance with Condition 24.

Formatted: Default, Left, Line spacing: single

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM for review and the District for approval a CEMS operating protocol as required by **AQ-4743**. The project owner shall make the site available for inspection of records by representatives of the District, ARB, and the Energy Commission.

**AQ-52-48** The CEMS shall be in operation in accordance with the District approved CEMS monitoring protocol at all times when the turbine is in operation. A copy of the District approved CEMS monitoring protocol shall be maintained on site and made available to District personnel upon request.

**Verification:** The project owner shall make the site available for inspection of records by representatives of the District, ARB, and the Energy Commission.

**AQ-53-49** When the CEMS is not recording data and the turbine is operating, hourly NOx emissions for the annual emission calculations shall be determined in accordance with 40 CFR 75 Subpart C. Additionally, hourly CO emissions for annual emission calculations shall be determined using CO emission factors to be determined from source test emission factors, recorded CEMS data, and fuel consumption data, in terms of pounds per hour of CO for the gas turbine. Emission calculations used to determine hourly emission rates shall be reviewed and approved by the District, in writing, before the hourly emission rates are incorporated into the CEMS emission data.

**Verification:** The project owner shall provide the District with all emission calculations required by this condition and shall provide notation of when such calculations are used in place of CEMS data as part of the Quarterly Operation Report (**AQ-SC11**).

**AQ-54-50** Any violation of any emission standard as indicated by the CEMS shall be reported to the District's compliance division within 96 hours after such occurrence (H&S Code).

**Verification:** The project owner shall notify the District regarding any emission standard violation as required in this condition and shall document all such occurrences in each Quarterly Operation Report (**AQ-SC11**).

**AQ-55-51** The CEMS shall be maintained and operated, and reports submitted, in accordance with the requirements of rule 19.2 Sections (d), (e), (f) (1), (f) (2), (f) (3), (f) (4) and (f) (5), and a CEMS protocol approved by the District.

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the District the CEMS reports as required

in this condition and shall make the site available for inspection of records by representatives of the District, ARB, and the Energy Commission.

**AQ-56-52** An operating log or data acquisition and handling system (DAHS) records shall be maintained either on site or at a District-approved alternate location to record actual times and durations of all startups and shut-downs, quantity of fuel used (hscf) in each clock hour, calendar month and 12 calendar month period and energy generated (MW-hr), (monthly and annually by calendar year), hours of daily operation and total cumulative hours of operation during each calendar year (monthly and annually by calendar year).

**Verification:** The operating log or DAHS operating records will be provided as part of the Quarterly Operation Report (**AQ-SC11**). The project owner shall make the site available for inspection of records by representatives of the District, ARB, and the Energy Commission.

**AQ-57-53** ~~Except for changes that are specified in the initial approved NOx monitoring protocol or a subsequent revision to that protocol that is approved in advance, in writing by the District, the District shall be notified in writing at least thirty (30) days prior to any planned changes made in the CEMS /DAHS (including the programmable logic controller) software which affects the value of data displayed on the CEMS / DAHS monitors with respect to the parameters measured by their respective sensing devices or any planned changes to the software that controls the ammonia flow to the SCR. Unplanned or emergency changes shall be reported within 96 hours. The District shall be notified at least two weeks prior to any changes made in the CEMS software that affect the measurement, calculation or correction of data displayed and/or recorded by the CEMs.~~

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM for review and the District for approval any revision to the CEMS/DAHS software, as required by this condition, to be approved in advance at least 30 days two weeks before any planned changes are made.

**AQ-58-54** Fuel flow meters with an accuracy of +/- 2% shall be maintained to measure the volumetric flow rate corrected for temperature and pressure. Correction factors and constants shall be maintained on site and made available to the District upon request. The fuel flow meters shall meet the applicable quality assurance requirements of 40 CFR part 75, Appendix D, and Section 2.1.6.

**Verification:** The project owner shall submit to the CPM the natural gas usage data from the fuel flow meters as part of the Quarterly Operation Report (**AQSC11**).

#### **Commissioning**

**AQ-59** ~~Beginning at initial startup of each turbine, a Commissioning Period for each turbine shall commence. The Commissioning Period shall end after not more than 200 hours of gas turbine operation. During the Commissioning Period, only the emission limits specified in Conditions 28 and 29 shall apply.~~

**Verification:** ~~A log of the dates, times, and cumulative unit operating hours when fuel is~~

Formatted: Default, Left, Line spacing: single

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, No underline

being combusted during the commissioning period shall be maintained by the project owner. The project owner shall submit, commencing one month from the time of gas turbine first fire, a monthly commissioning status report throughout the duration of the commissioning phase that demonstrates compliance with the requirements listed in this condition. The monthly commissioning status report shall be submitted to the CPM by the 10<sup>th</sup> of each month for the previous month, for all months with turbine commissioning activities following the turbine first fire date. The project owner shall make the site available for inspection of records by representatives of the District, ARB, and the Energy Commission.

~~AQ-60~~ Within 200 hours of gas turbine operation, after initial startup of each turbine, the project owner shall install post-combustion air pollution control equipment to minimize emissions from this equipment. Once installed, the post-combustion air pollution control equipment shall be maintained in good condition and, with the exception of periods during startup and shutdown, shall be in full operation at all times when the turbine is in stable operation.

~~Verification:~~ The project owner shall provide the CPM District records demonstrating compliance with this condition as part of the monthly commissioning status report (AQ-59).

~~AQ-61~~ Within 30 days after the end of the Commissioning Period for each turbine, the project owner shall submit a written progress report to the District. This report shall include, at a minimum, the date the Commissioning Period ended, the periods of startup, the emissions of NOx and CO during startup, and the emissions of NOx and CO during steady state operation. NOx and CO emissions shall be reported in both ppmv at 15 percent O2 and lbs/hour. This report shall also detail any turbine or emission control equipment malfunction, upset, repairs, maintenance, modifications, or replacements affecting emissions of air contaminants that occurred during the Commissioning Period.

~~Verification:~~ The project owner shall provide the CPM and the District records demonstrating compliance with this condition as part of the final monthly commissioning status report (AQ-59).

~~AQ-62~~ Only one combustion turbine shall undergo commissioning at a time. Combustion turbine operation for commissioning shall only occur during the hours of 7:00 A.M. to 7:00 P.M.

~~Verification:~~ The project owner shall provide the CPM CEMS data demonstrating compliance with this condition as part of the monthly commissioning status report (AQ-59).

**EXHIBIT 2**  
**Necessity for the Modification**

## EXHIBIT 2

### NECESSITY FOR THE MODIFICATION

### PETITION TO MODIFY THE ORANGE GROVE PROJECT

FCD CONDITION NUMBER (except as noted)	NEED FOR MODIFICATION						COMMENTS
	Format/ Grammar	Factual Update	No longer relevant	Technical Correction	APCD Rules Consistency	Other	
AQ-5	X						Grammatical correction.
AQ-6	X						APCD deleted redundant grammar.
AQ-10		X		X			APCD Permit numbers are a factual update. APCD deleted term "unit" and sentence referencing to 40 CFR 72.2 to clarify the APCD's intended meaning. There is a regulatory difference between the term "unit operating hours" and "operating hours". In this Condition the APCD means the total cumulative hours of operation of the combustion turbine units, which is purely the total amount of operating time. In contrast, the term "unit operating hour" is defined in the referenced regulation as a clock hour in which there is any amount of operation. Therefore, a single minute of operation in an hour (say for example the last minute of an hour) is considered one "unit operating hour". APCD did not intend to use the term "unit operating hour" for this condition.
AQ-11			X				APCD deleted because a limitation of the specific number of startup and shutdown operating hours annually is no longer relevant since there are already emission limitations for individual startup and shutdown events, limitations in the individual startup and shutdown event durations, and the annual emission limits of the turbines must include and account for the emissions during each startup and shutdown event. Therefore, a limitation in the total number of startup and shutdown hours is unnecessary.



AQ-13					X	APCD deleted this condition because it was erroneously included in their Final Determination of Compliance. It is not needed to ensure air quality compliance and unnecessarily limits power production.
AQ-15				X	X	APCD clarified the requirements of an hourly average to clearly mean a "clock hour" as a block and not just any 60 minute period without respect for the actual clock hour period. The revised language makes this hour averaging process consistent with federal and other state requirements. This is consistent with APCD Rule 63.3.1(g)(7).
AQ-16				X		APCD revised this to clarify the emissions limits associated with only the startup conditions as opposed to an hour with a startup in it. The revised Condition results in emission limits on a total "pounds per event" basis and cover only the startup period (30 minutes) which is now clearly defined in a revised version of original condition 37. Previously the condition was a lb/hr limit for a full hour in which there is a startup for an undefined period of time followed by normal operation for the balance of the hour. This would have been difficult to track via monitoring. In order to keep the maximum emissions during an hour with a startup the same as assessed in the original APCD permit and CEC conditions, the new "per event" emission limits were determined as the maximum 30-minute startup emissions which, combined with the normal operation emission limit rate for the balance of an hour, equals the original permit limit for a startup hour. For example, the new 13.25 lb NOx limit for the 30-minute startup period plus the normal operation limit of 4.3 lb/hr (original condition 22) for the remaining 30 minutes of the hour (i.e., $13.25 + 4.3 \times 30 \text{ min} / 60 \text{ min}$ ) equals 15.4 lb/hr (which is the hourly limit contained in the original APCD permit and CEC conditions for a startup). The CO limit of 12.05 lb/event ( $12.05 + 30/60 \times 6.1 = 15.1$ ) and VOC limit of 1.95 lb/event ( $1.95 + 30/60 \times 1.3 = 2.6$ ) in the revised condition are similarly calculated.
AQ-17				X		Similarly to original Condition 16, above, APCD revised this to clarify the emissions limits associated with only the shutdown conditions as opposed to an hour with a shutdown in it. The revised Condition results in emission limits on a total "pounds per event" basis and cover only the shutdown period (15 minutes) which is now clearly defined in a revised version of original condition 37. Previously the condition was a lb/hr limit for a full hour in which there is a shutdown for an undefined period of time preceded

						by normal operation for the balance of the hour. This would have been difficult to track via monitoring. In order to keep the maximum emissions during an hour with a shutdown the same as assessed in the original APCD permit and CEC conditions, the new “per event” emission limits were determined as the maximum 15-minute shutdown emissions which, combined with the normal operation emission limit rate for the balance of an hour, equals the original permit limit for a shutdown hour. For example, the new 2.68 lb NOx limit for the 15-minute startup period plus the normal operation limit of 4.3 lb/hr for the remaining 45 minutes of the hour (i.e., $2.68 + 4.3 \times 45 \text{ min} / 60 \text{ min}$ ) equals 5.9 lb/hr (which is the hourly limit contained in the original APCD permit and CEC conditions for a shutdown). The CO limit of 4.43 lb/event ( $4.43 + 45/60 \times 6.1 = 9.0$ ) and VOC limit of 0.73 lb/event ( $0.73 + 45/60 \times 1.3 = 1.7$ ) in the revised condition are similarly calculated.
AQ-18			X	X		APCD deleted this condition because it is no longer relevant. With per event startup and per event shutdown emissions limits already specified, this condition is no longer necessary. Furthermore, the original limits expressed in this condition were not calculated correctly. For example, the original condition limit of 16.1 pounds for NOX was not calculated correctly and should have been be 17.0 pounds, which is equal to the 17 lb/hr calculated for an hour with a 30 min startup (13.25), 15 min normal period (1.08), and 15 min shutdown (2.68). This was discussed with the District and is a reason the condition could be dropped. The original permit should have had a limit of 17.0 lb/hr based on the emission levels and durations listed on page 7 of the Districts's 12/4/08 FDOC. This is startup (3 pounds over 10 minutes), warm-up (10.9 pounds over 30 minutes), shutdown (2.2 pounds over 8 minutes), and steady state ( $4.3 \times 12/60=0.9$ pounds over 12 minutes) for a total of 17.0 pounds. They had not included the 12 minutes of normal operation, resulting in the 16.1 pounds level. This applies also to the CO and VOC calculations.
AQ-19	X		X	X		Grammatical corrections. To be consistent with original condition 15 APCD also clarified the limit is for a “clock hour” and not just any 60 minute period without respect for the actual clock hour period. APCD also revised portions of this condition since commissioning is completed.
AQ-20	X		X	X		Grammatical corrections. To be consistent with original condition 15 APCD

							also clarified the limit is for a “clock hour” and not just any 60 minute period without respect for the actual clock hour period. APCD also revised portions of this condition since commissioning is completed.
AQ-21	X		X	X			Grammatical corrections. To be consistent with original condition 15 APCD also clarified the limit is for a “clock hour” and not just any 60 minute period without respect for the actual clock hour period. APCD also revised portions of this condition since commissioning is completed.
AQ-22			X	X			To be consistent with original condition 15 APCD clarified the limit is for a “clock hour” and not just any 60 minute period without respect for the actual clock hour period. APCD also revised portions of this condition since commissioning is completed.
AQ-23			X	X			APCD corrected the 1-hour averaging period for the daily limit to be a calendar day basis. APCD also revised portions of this condition since commissioning is completed.
AQ-24				X			APCD corrected the 1-hour averaging period for the annual limit to be a rolling 12 calendar month basis.
AQ-25	X			X			Grammatical corrections. APCD also inserted the term “initial” before “source testing” to clarify that the turbines were required to demonstrate compliance with the mass emission rate limit of PM10 during the initial source test only and is not required by this condition to demonstrate compliance with the PM10 mass emission rate limit annually. APCD also clarified explicitly that the total PM which is measured by the EPA methods listed will be conservatively assumed to be PM10. (Note that because PM10 is a subset of PM by definition, PM10 as measured will be either equal to or less than PM.)
AQ-27			X	X			APCD added text to clarify that compliance with the limit is to be determined on a clock-hour basis. The original condition did not state a compliance time-frame. References to a “daily” emission rate were deleted. APCD also revised this condition since commissioning is completed. APCD also replaced Item 2 language (which generically allowed “other calculation method” to calculate ammonia) with a specific ammonia calculation equation which has been approved by the APCD.
AQ-28			X				APCD deleted this condition since commissioning is completed.
AQ-29			X				APCD deleted this condition since commissioning is completed.
AQ-31				X			APCD added a PM10 emission limit since this condition needs to reflect all

						five major stationary source trigger limits.
AQ-32	X					Grammatical correction.
AQ-33			X			APCD deleted this condition since construction is completed.
APCD Proposed New Condition (New AQ-29)					X	APCD added this condition to take the place of an equivalent requirement deleted from AQ-60 (see below).
APCD Proposed New Condition (New AQ-31)					X	APCD added to clarify requirement for reporting of ammonia injection control system break-downs pursuant to APCD Rules. The new condition requires continued manual operation of the ammonia injection system during this control system break-down period.
AQ-37				X		APCD revised the definition of turbine startup and shutdown periods to be 30-minutes and 15-minutes, respectively. This was done to eliminate the dependency of the startup or shutdown duration on whether the monitored emissions were determined to be in compliance with the normal operation limits, and to make the periods consistent and straightforward for the installed continuous emissions monitoring compliance equipment.
AQ-39	X		X	X	X	APCD deleted the initial phrase of this condition to reflect initial startup having been completed. APCD deleted all references to alternative methods requiring approval by U.S. EPA because APCD has jurisdiction for approving the use of alternative methods for compliance with the limits stated in this permit. APCD made a grammatical correction to clarify that both Method 5 AND either Method 201A or 202 are required. APCD also clarified that testing is to be performed at the "normal" load because this load is defined in the cited CFR section and is therefore consistent with federal terminology and requirements.
AQ-40	X		X	X		APCD deleted exhaust flow rate from the list because this parameter is not measured and is not used in the compliance calculations. The units of water injection was changed to gph because this is how the monitoring system tracks this parameter. APCD added the tracking of SCR inlet temperature and ammonia injection rate because these parameters are measured and are important to the tracking of SCR operation.
AQ-41			X			APCD edited this condition since initial startup has been completed.
AQ-45					X	APCD revised the required frequency of compliance testing from once each permit term (i.e., every 12 months) to a frequency which coincides with the

						NOx and CO RATA test frequency which is specifically defined in the cited federal regulations. This promotes effective use of stack testing resources by allowing stack emission compliance testing to coincide with CEMS RATA testing. This revision is consistent with APCD Rule 63.3.1(g)(3).
AQ-47			X			APCD edited this condition since the permanent CEMS is operating.
AQ-49			X		X	APCD edited this condition since requirements for initial operations have been completed. In addition, APCD reduced the notification period for future RATA and other certification tests testing from 45 days to 21 days to be consistent with APCD administrative requirements.
AQ-50			X			APCD deleted reference to the CEMS protocol with respect to the CO CEMS because APCD Rule 63.3.1(g)(2) and (3) do not require this.
AQ-51					X	APCD added parameters to the list for the CEMS to measure, calculate, and record to match the specific emission and operational limitations stated in the permit. APCD corrected the averaging timeframe for the NOx and CO ppmv to clock-hour periods to be consistent with revised original condition 15, and corrected the annual averaging timeframe for NOx and CO tons to rolling 12-calendar month to be consistent with revised original condition 24.
AQ-53			X			APCD modified to identify use of CEMS data in calculating CO emissions.
AQ-56					X	To be consistent with APCD's standard conditions APCD added the clock hour, calendar month, and 12 calendar month periods and deleted energy generated to be consistent with the current version of APCD Rule 69.3.1 which applies to new combustion turbines.
AQ-57					X	APCD revised this condition to be consistent with their standard conditions regarding notification requirements related to changes to the CEMS software.
AQ-59			X			APCD deleted this condition since commissioning is completed.
AQ-60			X			APCD deleted equipment installation requirements since equipment is installed and operating, and moved operations requirements to a separate new condition (See New Condition AQ-29, above).
AQ-61			X			APCD deleted this condition since the commissioning report is completed.
AQ-62			X			APCD deleted this condition since commissioning is completed.